

# Regular Meeting of the Measure T Citizens' Oversight Committee

#### **LOCATION**

Madera County Transportation Commission
Board Room
2001 Howard Road, Suite 201
Madera, California 93637

or via Zoom

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85161499832?pwd=GvykUeluLorzZOT3lUTJC61Bqrrdp4.1

Webinar ID: 851 6149 9832 Passcode: 052847

Telephone: US: +1 669 444.9171

#### **DATE**

September 24, 2025

#### TIME

5:00 PM

## **Citizens' Oversight Committee Members**

Terry Flanagan, Chair Member At Large
Janice Gomes, Vice Chair District 1
Wayne Chapman District 2
Joe Moreno District 3
Santos Garcia District 4
Russell Shaw District 5
April Molina Member At Large



#### Agenda

#### 1. **CALL TO ORDER**

#### 2. **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE**

#### **PUBLIC COMMENT** 3.

This time is made available for comments from the public on matters within the Committee's jurisdiction that are not on the agenda. Each speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes. Attention is called to the fact that the Committee is prohibited by law from taking any substantive action on matters discussed that are not on the agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Committee does not respond to the public comment at this time. It is requested that no comments be made during this period on items that are on today's agenda. Members of the public may comment on any item that is on today's agenda when the item is called and should notify the Chairperson of their desire to address the Committee when that agenda item is called.

#### WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 4.

#### 5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Meeting Minutes – January 22, 2025

Enclosure: Yes

**Action:** Approve January 22, 2025, Meeting Minutes

#### 6. **MEASURE T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

Measure "T" Fund Financial Statements for FY ending June 30, 2024: City of <u>A.</u> Chowchilla, City of Madera, County of Madera, and Madera County Transportation Authority

Enclosure: Yes

**Action:** Information and Discussion Only

#### 7. **LOCAL AGENCY UPDATE**

Measure T Local Agency Project Updates – City of Chowchilla, City of Madera, County Α. of Madera

Enclosure: No

**Action:** Information and Discussion Only



#### 8. REGIONAL UPDATE

A. Measure T Regional Project Updates

Enclosure: No

**Action:** Information and Discussion Only

#### 9. ANNUAL REPORT TO THE PUBLIC

A. FY 2024 Annual Report to the Public

Enclosure: Yes

Action: Approve Annual Report to the Public

#### 10. OTHER ITEMS

A. Proposed Meeting Schedule

B. Agenda Items for Next Meeting

C. Items from Committee Members

#### 11. ADJOURNMENT



#### **STAFF REPORT**

Board Meeting of July 30, 2025

**AGENDA ITEM:** 5-A

**PREPARED BY:** Troy McNeil, Deputy Director/Fiscal Supervisor

**SUBJECT:** 

Meeting Minutes – January 22, 2025

Enclosure: Yes

Action: Approve January 22, 2025, Meeting Minutes

#### **SUMMARY:**

Attached are the Meeting Minutes for the January 22, 2025, Measure T Citizens' Oversight Committee Meeting.

#### **FISCAL IMPACT:**

No fiscal impact to the approved 2024-25 Overall Work Program and Budget.



## Measure T Citizens' Oversight Committee Executive Minutes

Date: Wednesday January 8, 2025

**Time:** 5:00 pm

Place: Madera County Transportation Commission

In person and Zoom

Members Present: Terry Flanagan, Chair, Member At Large

Janice Gomes, District 1 Wayne Chapman, District 2 Joe Moreno, District 3 Russell Shaw, District 5

April Molina, Member At Large

Vacancy: District 4

MCTC Staff: Troy McNeil, Deputy Director/Fiscal Supervisor

Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst



#### **Agenda**

#### 1. CALL TO ORDER

#### 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

#### 3. PUBLIC COMMENT

This time is made available for comments from the public on matters within the Committee's jurisdiction that are not on the agenda. Each speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes. Attention is called to the fact that the Committee is prohibited by law from taking any substantive action on matters discussed that are not on the agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Committee does not respond to the public comment at this time. It is requested that no comments be made during this period on items that are on today's agenda. Members of the public may comment on any item that is on today's agenda when the item is called and should notify the Chairperson of their desire to address the Committee when that agenda item is called.

Chair Flanagan opened the floor for public comments. The following public comment was received:

Dan Metz, Madera County, thanked the Citizens' Oversight Committee members for their commitment to fulfilling their responsibilities and ensuring transparency by demonstrating that the work aligns with the requirements of their role.

Mr. Metz spoke regarding wildfires and evacuations in eastern Madera County.

#### 4. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

#### 5. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

#### A. Election of Officers

Action: Elect a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson

#### **Election of Officers Action on Item 5A**

Upon motion by Member Gomes, seconded by Member Shaw, to appoint Member Flanagan as Citizens' Oversight Committee Chairperson. A vote was called and the motion carried.

Roll call for votes:

Member Flanagan, Chair Yes
Member Chapman, District 2 Yes
Member Gomes, District 1 Yes
Member Moreno, District 3 Yes



Member Shaw, District 5 Yes Member Molina, At Large Yes

Vote passed 6-0

Upon motion by Chair Flanagan, seconded by Member Shaw, to appoint Janice Gomes as the Citizens' Oversight Committee Vice Chairperson. A vote was called, and the motion carried.

Roll call for votes:

Member Flanagan, Chair

Member Chapman, District 2

Member Gomes, District 1

Member Moreno, District 3

Member Shaw, District 5

Member Molina, At Large

Yes

Vote passed 6-0

#### 6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. Meeting Minutes – June 12, 2024

Action: Approve June 12, 2024, Meeting Minutes

#### Action on Items 6A

Upon motion by Member Gomes, seconded by Member Chapman, to approve the Minutes of June 12, 2024.

Roll call for votes:

Member Flanagan, Chair Yes
Member Chapman, District 2 Yes
Member Gomes, District 1 Yes
Member Moreno, District 3 Yes
Member Shaw, District 5 Abstain
Member Molina, At Large Yes

Vote passed 5-0

#### 7. LOCAL AGENCY UPDATE

A. Measure T Local Agency Project Updates - City of Chowchilla, City of Madera, County of Madera

**Action:** Information and Discussion Only

City of Madera – Ellen Bitter from the City of Madera presented the City's current Measure T projects:

Road Maintenance



- Seals and Overlays in various locations
- Resurfaced roadways with ADA improvements at various locations

#### **Current Projects**

- Olive Avenue Widening
- Almond/Pine/Stadium Traffic Study
- D Street/South Street Traffic Signal
- Howard Road Storm Drain Improvements for Design
- Construction of sidewalks on Schnoor from Sunset to Riverside
- Installation of sidewalks and ADA compliant corner ramps at Washington Elementary School
- Alley paving in various locations
- Bus shelter relocation project

City of Chowchilla – Troy McNeil from MCTC presented the City's current Measure T projects:

#### **Completed Projects**

- Fuller Neighborhood Pedestrian Improvement Project
- Wilson School Pedestrian Improvement Project
- 5<sup>th</sup> Street Curve/Road 16 Project
- Humboldt Avenue Road Rehabilitation Project
- Roundabouts Environmental Phase
- Chowchilla Blvd. Reconstruction Project

#### **Current Projects**

- Robertson Boulevard Clean California Project
- CATX New Bus Purchase
- Avenue 24 Reconstruction Project
- Safety improvements at various intersections
   Road Maintenance
- Repair and ADA improvements

#### **Future Projects**

Humboldt Avenue Phase 2 Project



- Avenue 24 ½ Rehabilitation Project
- Road 15 ½ Rehabilitation Project
- Riverside Avenue Rehabilitation Project
- Colussa Avenue Rehabilitation Project

County of Madera – Jared Carter of Madera County presented the County's current Measure T projects:

#### **Completed Projects**

- Avenue 7 Rehabilitation (Road 30 ½ to SR 99)
- Shoulder paving at various locations
- Avenue 25 Bridge Replacement (at Ash Slough)
- Cape Seal Project (approximately 40 miles)
- 2021 Shoulder Paving at various locations (totaling 21.5 miles)

#### Road Maintenance

- Cap Seal Project at various locations
- Overlay/Grader Cap various locations
- Patching; routine maintenance

#### **Current Projects**

- Pavement Management System
- Midtown Connector Mitigation (River Parkway Road)
- 2019 Shoulder Paving at various locations (totaling 18 miles)
- Full Depth Reclamation (4 road segments)
- Road 200 Bridge Mitigation (at Finegold Creek)
- Avenue 12/Rd25 and Ave 12/Rd 28 ½ Turn Pockets
- Avenue 15/Rd 36 to SR 41 Maintenance

#### 8. REGIONAL UPDATE

A. Measure T Regional Project Updates

**Action:** Information and Discussion Only

Troy McNeil of MCTC provided an update on the current and upcoming Regional Measure T projects, revenues received, and anticipated revenues.

**Current and Upcoming Projects** 



- SR 233 Interchange Operational Improvements
- SR 99 Widening Avenue 7 to Avenue 12, all funding has been secured, expected to be in construction in 2026.
- City of Madera Gateway Avenue Widening
- City of Madera Cleveland Avenue Widening

#### 9. ELECTION RESULTS

A. Staff will provide a verbal update regarding the election results of the Measure T Renewal

**Action:** Information and Discussion Only

Chair Flanagan opened the floor for public comment. The following comment was received:

Dan Metz, Madera County, asked for the definition of a citizens' initiative and clarification on the role of citizens in the process.

#### 10. OTHER ITEMS

- A. Proposed Meeting Schedule
- B. Agenda Items for Next Meeting
- C. Items from Committee Members

#### 11. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 6:53 pm. Next meeting scheduled for Wednesday, June 11, 2025.



#### STAFF REPORT

## Citizens' Oversight Committee Meeting of September 24, 2025

**AGENDA ITEM:** 6-A

**PREPARED BY:** Troy McNeil, Deputy Director/Fiscal Supervisor

#### SUBJECT:

Measure "T" Fund Financial Statements for FY ending June 30, 2024: City of Chowchilla, City of Madera, County of Madera, and Madera County Transportation Authority

Enclosure: Yes

**Action:** Information and Discussion Only

#### **SUMMARY:**

Measure "T" Fund Financial Statements for FY ending June 30, 2024 for the City of Chowchilla, City of Madera, County of Madera and Madera County Transportation Authority:

1. MCTC has received the Measure "T" Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024, for the City of Chowchilla. This report was done in accordance with Section 99245 of the Public Utilities Code by Price Paige & Company.

We are pleased to report that there are no adverse findings.

2. MCTC has received the Measure "T" Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024, for the City of Madera. This report was done in accordance with Section 99245 of the Public Utilities Code by The Pun Group.

We are pleased to report that there are no adverse findings.

3. MCTC has received the Measure "T" Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024, for the County of Madera. This report was done in accordance with Section 99245 of the Public Utilities Code by HHC Inc.

We are pleased to report that there are no adverse findings.

4. MCTC has received the Measure "T" Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024, for the Madera County Transportation Authority. This report was done in accordance with Section 99245 of the Public Utilities Code by Price Paige & Company.

The audit identified one item. At year-end, receivables and payables balances were misstated—some recorded too high and others too low—because certain sales tax revenues had not yet been transferred by the trustee into the Authority's Madera County account.

To prevent this in the future, staff will implement a year-end review step to verify receivables and payables balances. This added control will ensure the accuracy of the financial statements going forward.

# City of Chowchilla | CA Measure T Fund

Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024



## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	PAGE
Independent Auditor's Report	1
Financial Statements:	
Balance Sheet	5
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance	6
Notes to the Financial Statements	8
Required Supplementary Information:	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule	
Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule	13
Supplementary Information:	
Balance Sheet by Funding Source	15
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures by Funding Source	16
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Rules and Regulations of the Measure T Enabling Legislation.	17



The Place to Be

#### **INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT**

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Chowchilla, California

#### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

#### **Opinions**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Measure T Fund of the City of Chowchilla, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's Measure T financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Measure T Fund of the City, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### **Emphasis of Matter**

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Measure T Fund of the City, are intended to present the financial position and charges in financial position of the Measure T Fund of the City. They do not purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of the City, as of June 30, 2024, or the changes in its financial position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

570 N. Magnolia Avenue, Suite 100 Clovis, CA 93611

> tel 559.299.9540 fax 559.299.2344

#### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control as it relates to Measure T Funds. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Required Supplementary Information**

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the Untied States of America require to be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison information on pages 12–13 be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's Measure T Fund financial statements. The accompanying Balance Sheet by Funding Source and the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures by Funding Source (the Schedules) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are

not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated April 11, 2025, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting as it relates to the Measure T Funds and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance as it relates to the Measure T Funds.

Clovis, California April 11, 2025

Price Page & Company

## **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

ASSETS	
Current assets:	
Cash and investments	\$ 2,014,080
Due from MCTA	 516,392
Total assets	\$ 2,530,472
LIABILITIES	\$ <u> </u>
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Unavailable revenues	 336,814
Total deferred inflows of resources	 336,814
FUND BALANCE	
Restricted for highway and streets	 2,193,658
Total fund balance	 2,193,658
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources	
and fund balance	\$ 2,530,472

## CITY OF CHOWCHILLA MEASURE T FUND | FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

REVENUES	
Measure T sales tax	\$ 712,552
Unrealized gain/loss	11,642
Interest	77,575
Miscellaneous	 5,000
Total revenues	 806,769
EXPENDITURES	
Current:	
Highway and streets	 8,035
Total expenditures	8,035
	<u> </u>
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures	 798,734
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)	
Transfers out	 (473,733)
Total other financing sources (uses)	 (473,733)
Net change in fund balance	325,001
Fund balance - beginning	 1,868,657
Fund balance - ending	\$ 2,193,658

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

#### A. <u>Description of Reporting Entity</u>

The accompanying financial statements present only the Measure T Transportation Sales Tax Fund as recorded in the Measure T Fund (Measure T Fund) of the City of Chowchilla, California (the City) and are not intended to present fairly the financial position, and changes in financial position of the City with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The financial statements of the Measure T Fund have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below.

The Measure T Fund is a governmental fund specifically categorized as a special revenue fund. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for specified purposes. Governmental funds are accounted for on a "current financial resources" measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except those revenues subject to accrual (generally received in cash within 60 days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the Measure T Fund are intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures are recorded in the accompanying period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

Intergovernmental revenues (primarily grants and subventions), which are received as reimbursement for specific purposes or projects, are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. Intergovernmental revenues, which are usually restricted as to use, are revocable only for failure to meet prescribed compliance requirements, and are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier, if they meet the availability criterion.

#### C. <u>Use of Estimates</u>

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### D. <u>Due from Madera County Transportation Authority (MCTA)</u>

Due from MCTA consists of the Measure T allocations due from Madera Commission Transportation Authority. As of June 30, 2024, the balance of \$516,392 is due to the third quarter, fourth quarter and excess disbursements of the fiscal year 2024 Measure T allocations.

#### E. Unavailable Revenue

In the fund financial statements, unavailable revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet met the revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City records unavailable revenue for transactions for which revenues have been earned, but for which funds are not available to meet current financial obligations. The City received the third-quarter, fourth-quarter and excess allocations of fiscal year 2024 Measure T monies after the available period (60 days after year-end). As of June 30, 2024, the City's total unavailable revenues were \$336,814.

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING INFORMATION (Continued)

#### F. Fund Balance Classification

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable – Amounts cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form (such as inventory or prepaid expense, and long-term loans and notes receivable) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (such as principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted — Amounts with external constraints placed on the use of these resources (such as debt covenants, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, etc.) or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed – Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by City Council, the City's highest level of decision-making authority, through an ordinance or resolution. These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified uses through the same type of formal action taken to establish the commitment.

Assigned – Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Intent is expressed by the City Council or its designee and may be changed at the discretion of the City Council or its designee. For all governmental funds other than the General Fund, any remaining positive amounts not classified as nonspendable, restricted or committed must be designated as assigned fund balance.

*Unassigned* – This classification includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the City.

The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first to deter the use of these other classified funds.

#### NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Measure T Fund participates in the City's cash and investments pool that includes all other City funds, which the City Treasurer invests to enhance interest earnings. Interest income from the investment of pooled cash is allocated on an accounting basis based on the period-end cash and investment balance of the funds as a percentage of the total pooled cash balance.

The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California, titled Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in Structured Notes and Assets-Backed Securities. The City values all of its cash and investments at fair value on a portfolio basis. The City manages its pooled idle cash and investments under a formal investment policy that is adopted and reviewed by the City Council, and that follows the guidelines of the State of California Government Code.

Citywide information concerning cash and investments for the year ended June 30, 2024, including authorized investments, custodial credit risk, credit and interest rate risk for debt securities and concentration of investments, carrying amount and market value of deposits and investments, may be found in the notes of the City's financial statements.

#### CITY OF CHOWCHILLA MEASURE T FUND | JUNE 30, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

#### NOTE 3 – TRANSFERS

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Measure T Fund transferred a total of \$473,733 to tother City funds. Of this amount, \$412,044 was transferred to the Streets and Roads Fund (LTF) for capital outlay costs related to the Alley Paving Project, Chowilla Blvd Project, and general street maintenance. Additionally, \$61,689 was transferred to the Capital Project Fund for Alley Paving Project.

## REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

## CITY OF CHOWCHILLA MEASURE T FUND | FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

**Budgetary Comparison Schedule** 

		Original Budget		Final Budget						Actual		Variance with Final Budget	
REVENUES													
Measure T sales tax	\$	704,748	\$	712,554	\$	712,552	\$	(2)					
Unrealized gain/loss		-		-		11,642		11,642					
Interest		16,815		77,576		77,575		(1)					
Miscellaneous						5,000		5,000					
Total revenues		721,563		790,130		806,769		16,639					
EXPENDITURES													
Current:													
Highway and streets	-			8,037		8,035		2					
Total expenditures				8,037		8,035		2					
Excess (deficiency) of revenues													
over (under) expenditures		721,563		782,093		798,734		16,641					
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)													
Transfers out		(457,333)		(606,136)		(473,733)		132,403					
Total other financing sources (uses)		(457,333)		(606,136)		(473,733)		132,403					
Net change in fund balance	\$	264,230	\$	175,957		325,001	\$	149,044					
Fund balance - beginning						1,868,657							
Fund balance - ending					\$	2,193,658							

#### CITY OF CHOWCHILLA MEASURE T FUND | FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule

#### NOTE 1 – BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City of Chowchilla, California (the City) establishes annual budgets for the Measure T Fund. Except for encumbrances and long-term projects in progress, which are carried forward to the following year, all appropriations remaining will lapse at year-end. The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the budgetary comparison schedules:

- 1) The department heads prepare a budget request based upon the previous year's expenditures.
- 2) A meeting is held between the department heads, Finance Director and the City Administrator for the purpose of reviewing and prioritizing the budget requests.
- 3) The City Administrator submits the proposed City Budget to the City Council, who makes decisions regarding department budgets.
- 4) The approved budget is placed in the City's accounting system and monitored by the Finance Department, as well as by the department heads.
  - Department heads may, with the City Administrator's authorization, transfer amounts between line items which do not change the original operational budget appropriation limit of the department. The transfers between departments and funds require approval of the City Council.
- 5) Budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis. Revenues are budgeted in the year receipt is expected, and expenditures are budgeted in the year in which the applicable purchase orders are to be made. Budgeted amounts are maintained as originally adopted until further amended as described above. The level of control (level at which expenditures may not exceed budget) is at the fund levels for the Measure T Fund.

## **SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION**

## CITY OF CHOWCHILLA MEASURE T FUND | JUNE 30, 2024

Balance Sheet by Funding Source

	Commut Corridors Farm to Market	5/ 5	Safe Routes to School and Jobs		Transit Enhancement		Environmental Enhancement		Fund Total
ASSETS									
Current assets:  Cash and investments	\$ 1,175,	665 \$	483,386	\$	182,683	\$	172,346	\$	2,014,080
Due from MCTA	252,		223,864		20,122		20,123	<del>-</del>	516,392
Total assets	\$ 1,427,	948 \$	707,250	\$	202,805	\$	192,469	\$	2,530,472
LIABILITIES	\$	- \$	-	\$	<u>-</u>	\$		\$	<u>-</u>
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES									
Unavailable revenues	164,	299	146,227		13,144		13,144		336,814
Total deferred inflows of resources	164,	299	146,227		13,144		13,144		336,814
FUND BALANCES									
Restricted for highway and streets	1,263,	649	561,023		189,661		179,325		2,193,658
Total fund balances	1,263,	649	561,023		189,661		179,325		2,193,658
Total liabilities, deferred inflows									
of resources and fund balances	\$ 1,427,	948 <u>\$</u>	707,250	\$	202,805	\$	192,469	\$	2,530,472

## CITY OF CHOWCHILLA MEASURE T FUND $\mid$ FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures by Funding Source

	Commute Corridors Farm to Market	/ Safe Routes	Transit Enhancement	Environmental Enhancement	Fund Total
REVENUES					
Measure T sales tax	\$ 347,5				
Unrealized gain/loss Interest	5,7 36,7	•		983 6,874	11,642 77,575
Miscellaneous	5,0			-	5,000
Total revenues	395,0	58 341,744	34,303	35,664	806,769
EXPENDITURES					
Current: Highway and streets	7,2	<u>25</u> <u>563</u>	113	134	8,035
Total expenditures	7,2	25 563	113	134	8,035
Excess (deficiency) of revenues					
over (under) expenditures	387,8	33 341,181	34,190	35,530	798,734
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Transfers out	(3	50) (428,383	)	(45,000)	(473,733)
Total other financing sources (uses)	(3	50) (428,383	)	(45,000)	(473,733)
Net change in fund balances	387,4	83 (87,202	34,190	(9,470)	325,001
Fund balances - beginning	876,1	66 648,225	155,471	188,795	1,868,657
Fund balances - ending	\$ 1,263,6	49 \$ 561,023	\$ 189,661	\$ 179,325	\$ 2,193,658



The Place to Be

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE MEASURE T ENABLING LEGISLATION

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Chowchilla, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Measure T Fund of the City of Chowchilla, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's Measure T Fund's financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 11, 2025.

#### **Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control), as it relates to the Measure T Funds, as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Measure T fund of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

#### **Report on Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Measure T Fund's of the City's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our audit was further made to determine that allocations made and expended by the City were made in accordance with the Measure T Enabling Legislation. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or the Measure T Enabling Legislation.

570 N. Magnolia Avenue, Suite 100

Clovis, CA 93611

tel 559.299.9540 fax 559.299.2344

#### **Purpose of This Report**

Prue Page & Company

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control or on compliance as it relates to the Measure T Funds. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Clovis, California April 11, 2025

# City of Madera Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund

Madera, California

## **Independent Auditors' Reports and Financial Statements**

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024



## City of Madera Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

## **Table of Contents**

<u>Page</u>
Independent Auditors' Report
Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet
Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information:
Budgetary Information
Other Supplementary Information:
Balance Sheet by Funding Source
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Rules and Regulations of the Measure "T" Enabling Legislation

This page intentionally left blank.



200 E. Sandpointe Avenue, Suite 600 Santa Ana, California 92707







#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the City of Madera Madera, California

#### Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

#### **Opinion**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund (the "Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund") of the City of Madera, California (the "City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund of the City as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### **Emphasis of Matter**

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2024, the change in financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows, for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.





To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the City of Madera Madera, California Page 2

## Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

## Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, as listed in the accompanying table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing information.

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the City of Madera
Madera, California
Page 3

## Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund financial statements. The Balance Sheet by Funding Source and the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance by Funding Source are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet by Funding Source and the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance by Funding Source are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

## Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 13, 2025, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Santa Ana, California March 13, 2025

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## City of Madera Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund Balance Sheet June 30, 2024

	Measure "T" Fund
ASSETS	
Cash and investments	\$ 16,279,900
Intergovernmental receivable	2,486,398
Total assets	\$ 18,766,298
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES	
Liabilities:	
Accounts payable	\$ 39,511
Total liabilities	39,511
Deferred inflows of resources:	
Unavailable revenue	1,624,097
Total deferred inflows of resources	1,624,097
Fund Balance:	
Restricted	17,102,690
Total fund balance	17,102,690
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of	
resources, and fund balance	\$ 18,766,298

7

# City of Madera Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund

## Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

	Measure "T" Fund
REVENUES:	
Measure "T" sales tax	\$ 3,435,575
Investment income	579,658
Total revenues	4,015,233
EXPENDITURES:	
Capital outlay	362,933
Total expenditures	362,933
REVENUES OVER	
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES	3,652,300
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):	
Transfers out	(860,000)
Total other financing sources (uses)	(860,000)
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE	2,792,300
FUND BALANCE:	
Beginning of year	14,310,390
End of year	\$ 17,102,690

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# City of Madera Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund

## Index to the Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

NOTE	DESCRIPTION	PAGE_
1	Summary of Significant Accounting Policies	13
2	Deposits in the City's Pool	15
3	Transfers	15
4	Contingencies	15

## City of Madera Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

## Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

## The Reporting Entity

The Measure "T" Sales Tax Program ("Measure "T"") is administered by the Madera County Transportation Authority (the "Authority") was created by the approval of Measure "T" by the voters of Madera County, California (the "County") in November 2006. Measure "T" authorized the imposition of a one half percent (1/2%) retail transaction and use tax ("sales tax") in the County for 20 years through the year 2027. The proceeds from Measure "T" are principally reserved for regional projects, local transportation, public transportation, and environmental enhancement. The sales tax revenues received by the Authority under Measure "T", after deducting certain administrative costs, are to be spent for programs as set forth in the investment plan included in Measure "T" and approved by the voters of the County.

The primary elements of the Measure T Program consist of the following:

<u>Commute Corridor/Farm to Market Program (Regional Transportation Program)</u> – authorizes major new projects to improve freeway interchanges, adds additional lanes, increases safety as determined by the local jurisdictions, and improves and reconstructs major commute corridors.

<u>Safe Routes to Schools and Jobs Program (Local Transportation Program)</u> – goal of this program is to improve each individual City's and the County's local transportation systems.

<u>Transit Enhancement Program (Public Transportation Program)</u> – goal of this program is to expand or enhance public transit programs that address the transit dependent population and have a demonstrated ability to get people out of their cars and improve air quality.

<u>Environmental Enhancement Program</u> – goal of this program is to improve air quality and the environment through four programs: environmental mitigation, air quality, bicycle/pedestrian facilities, and car/van pools.

<u>Administration and Planning Program</u> – funding is provided to the Authority to prepare investment plan updates, develop allocation program requirements, and administer and conduct specified activities identified in the other four programs.

The financial statements of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund (the "Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund"), a Special Revenue Fund of the City of Madera, California (the "City") have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted of the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund's accounting policies are described below.

## Financial Statements

The Measure "T" enabling legislation provides funding of highway and streets projects. Funds are allocated to the City through the county transportation planning agency, the Madera County Transportation Authority. The Measure "T" Sales Tax Funds account for the City's share of the Measure "T" sales tax allocations, which are legally restricted for specific purposes as detailed in Section 99245 of the Public Utilities Code.

The accompanying financial statements present only the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund of the City and are not intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of the City in conformity with U.S. GAAP.

## City of Madera

## Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

## Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

## Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

The Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund is a governmental fund specifically categorized as a special revenue fund. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

## Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund is reported using "current financial resources" measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available and expenditures are recognized when the fund liabilities are incurred. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City uses an availability period of 60 days. Revenues that are susceptible to accrual include Measure "T" sales tax allocations and investment earnings. Intergovernmental revenues (primarily grants and subventions), which are received as reimbursement for specific purposes or projects, are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. Intergovernmental revenues, which are usually unrestricted as to use and are revocable only for failure to meet prescribed compliance requirements, are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier, if they meet the availability criterion.

## Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash is held by the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund as part of the City's pooled cash and investments. The pooled funds are invested in accordance with the City's investment policy established pursuant to state law. All monies not required for immediate expenses are invested or deposited to earn maximum yield consistent with safety and liquidity. Interest earnings is allocated to the fund based on its proportionate share of the pool. Refer to the City's Basic Financial Statements for disclosures of cash and investments and related risk categorization.

## Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund has no items to report in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, *deferred inflows of resources*, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will *not* be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has items that qualifies for reporting in this category that is related to unavailable revenue. Unavailable revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet met the revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City records unavailable revenue for transactions for which revenues have been earned, but for which funds are not available to meet current financial obligations. The Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund had unavailable revenue in the amount of \$1,624,097 as of June 30, 2024.

## City of Madera

## Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

## Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

#### **Fund Balances**

The Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund reports fund balance as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent. Fund balances are categorized as follows:

## Restricted Fund Balance

This amount indicates the portion of fund balances which has been restricted; a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The entire fund balance of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund is restricted as of June 30, 2024.

## Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

In order to calculate the amounts to rep[ort as restricted fund balance in the financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance.

## Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

## Note 2 - Deposits in the City's Pool

The City has pooled its cash and investments in order to achieve a higher return on investments while facilitating management of cash. Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in various interest-bearing accounts and other investments for varying terms. The balance of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Funds' cash and investments, as of June 30, 2024 was \$16,279,900.

The Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund's cash is deposited in the City's internal investment pool, which is reported at fair value. The Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund does not own specifically identifiable securities in the City's pool. The balance of cash deposited in the City's pool was \$16,279,900 as of June 30, 2024.

Investments earnings is allocated based on average cash balances. Investment policies and associated risk factors applicable to the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund are those of the City and are included in the City's basic financial statements.

## Note 3 - Transfers

For the year ended June 30, 2024, \$860,000 was transferred out of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund to the City's General Fund's Public Works Streets department to supplement qualifying street-related operating costs.

## Note 4 - Contingencies

The Measure "T" Sales Tax Funds are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors and their representatives. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Unaudited)

## City of Madera

# Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) Budgetary Comparison Schedule For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

## **Budgetary Information**

The City establishes annual budgets for the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund. Except for encumbrances and long-term projects in progress, which are carried forward to the following year, all appropriations remaining will lapse at year-end. The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the budgetary comparison schedules:

- 1. The department heads prepare a budget request based upon the previous year's expenditures.
- 2. A meeting is held between the department heads, the Finance Director and the City Administrator for the purpose of reviewing and prioritizing the budget requests.
- 3. The City Administrator submits the proposed City budget to the City Council, who makes decisions regarding department budgets.
- 4. The approved budget is placed in the City accounting system and monitored by the Finance Department as well as by the department heads.
- 5. Department heads may, with the City Administrator's authorization, transfer amounts between line items which do not change the original operational budget appropriation limit of the department. The transfers between departments and funds require approval of the City Council.
- 6. Budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis. Revenues are budgeted in the year receipt is expected, and expenditures are budgeted in the year that the applicable purchase orders are expected to be issued. Budgeted amounts are maintained as originally adopted and as further amended by the City Council. The level of control (level at which expenditures may not exceed budget) is at fund level for the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund.

## City of Madera

## Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund

## Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) Budgetary Comparison Schedule

## For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

	Budgeted Amounts Original Final					Actual Amounts	Variance with Final Budget Favorable/ (Unfavorable)		
REVENUES:									
Measure "T" sales tax	\$	3,209,972	\$	3,459,589	\$	3,435,575	\$	(24,014)	
Investment income		38,548				579,658		579,658	
Total revenues		3,248,520		3,459,589	_	4,015,233		555,644	
EXPENDITURES:									
Current:									
Public ways and facilities		1,800		1,800		•		1,800	
Capital outlay	0	2,878,386		2,953,393		362,933		2,590,460	
Total expenditures	5	2,880,186		2,955,193	_	362,933		2,592,260	
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES		368,334	,	504,396	ñ <u></u>	3,652,300		3,147,904	
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):									
Transfers out		(897,474)		(860,000)		(860,000)			
Total other financing sources (uses)		(897,474)		(860,000)		(860,000)			
Net change in fund balance	\$	(529,140)	\$	(355,604)		2,792,300	\$	3,147,904	
FUND BALANCE:									
Beginning of year						14,310,390			
End of year					\$	17,102,690			

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

# City of Madera Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund Balance Sheet By Funding Source June 30, 2024

	Commute Corridors/ Farm to Market		Safe Routes to School and Jobs		Transit Enhancement		Environmental Enhancement			Total
ASSETS										
Cash and investments Intergovernmental receivable	\$	12,297,276 1,212,876	\$	2,988,693 1,079,461	\$	835,510 97,031	\$	158,421 97,030	\$	16,279,900
Total assets	\$	13,510,152	\$	4,068,154	\$	932,541	\$	255,451	\$	2,486,398 18,766,298
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES Liabilities:										
Accounts payable		•	\$	~	_\$		\$	39,511	\$	39,511
Total liabilities		•			_			39,511	_	39,511
Deferred inflows of resources:										
Unavailable revenue		792,243		705,096		63,379		63,379		1,624,097
Total deferred inflows of resources		792,243		705,096		63,379		63,379		1,624,097
Fund Balances:										
Restricted		12,717,909		3,363,058		869,162		152,561		17,102,690
Total fund balances		12,717,909		3,363,058		869,162		152,561		17,102,690
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances	\$	13,510,152	\$	4,068,154	\$	932,541	\$_	255,451	\$	18,766,298

## City of Madera Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund

## Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances By Funding Source For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

	Commute Corridors/ Farm to Market		Safe Routes to School and Jobs		Transit Enhancement		Environmental Enhancement		Total
REVENUES:									
Measure "T" sales tax	\$	1,675,890	\$	1,491,543	\$	134,071	\$	134,071	\$ 3,435,575
Investment income		430,485		112,746		28,993		7,433	579,657
Total revenues	_	2,106,375		1,604,289		163,064		141,504	 4,015,232
EXPENDITURES:									
Current:									
Highways and streets		65,794		-		2,046		295,092	 362,932
Total expenditures		65,794		•		2,046		295,092	 362,932
REVENUES OVER									
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES		2,040,581	_	1,604,289		161,018		(153,588)	 3,652,300
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):									
Transfers out				(860,000)				-	(860,000)
Total other financing sources (uses)				(860,000)				1.0	 (860,000)
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES		2,040,581		744,289		161,018		(153,588)	2,792,300
FUND BALANCES:									
Beginning of year		10,677,328		2,618,769		708,144		306,149	14,310,390
End of year	\$	12,717,909	\$	3,363,058	\$	869,162	\$	152,561	\$ 17,102,690

**COMPLIANCE REPORT** 



200 E. Sandpointe Avenue, Suite 600 Santa Ana, California 92707







# REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE MEASURE "T" ENABLING LEGISLATION

## Independent Auditors' Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the City of Madera
Madera, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund (the "Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund") of the City of Madera, California (the "City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 13, 2025.

## Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control), as it relates to the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund, as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.





To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the City of Madera
Madera, California
Page 2

The Red Group, UP

## Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our audit was further made to determine that allocations made and expended by the City were made in accordance with the Measure "T" Enabling Legislation. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

## Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Measure "T" Sales Tax Fund's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Santa Ana, California March 13, 2025

## COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND

# FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	<u>Page</u>
Independent Auditors' Report	. 1
Financial Statements:	
Balance Sheet	. 4
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance	. 5
Notes to the Financial Statements	. 6
Other Supplementary Information:	
Balance Sheet by Funding Source	. 11
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance by Funding Source	. 12
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Rules and Regulations	40
of the Measure T Enabling Legislation	. 13



#### **INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT**

To the Board of Supervisors County of Madera, California

#### Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

#### **Opinions**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Measure T Special Revenue Fund (the Measure T Fund) of the County of Madera, California (the County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Measure T Fund of the County as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### **Emphasis of Matter**

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Measure T Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the County as of June 30, 2024, or the change in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

## Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Measure T Fund's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

## Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control of the Measure T Fund. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Measure T Fund's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

## **Required Supplementary Information**

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

#### Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Measure T Fund financial statements. The Balance Sheet by Funding Source and the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance by Funding Source are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet by Funding Source and the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance by Funding Source are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

## Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Um + Compay, Jac.

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated August 6, 2025, on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Measure T Fund's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Measure T Fund's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

**HUDSON & COMPANY, INC.** 

Fresno, California August 6, 2025

## COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND BALANCE SHEET JUNE 30, 2024

	Measure T Fund	
ASSETS		
Cash and investments Intergovernmental receivable Due from the County	\$	19,126,386 1,945,592 135
Total Assets	\$	21,072,113
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities Advances from other funds Due to the County	\$	6,000,000 936,852
Total Liabilities		6,936,852
Deferred Inflows of Resources Unavailable revenue		1,945,592
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources		1,945,592
Fund Balance Restricted		12,189,669
Total Fund Balance		12,189,669
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance	\$	21,072,113

## COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND

## STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

	Measure T Fund
REVENUES	
Measure T sales tax Investment income Other income	\$ 3,075,351 409,989 7,579,900
Total Revenues	11,065,240
EXPENDITURES	
Public ways and facilities: Highways and streets	8,811,807
Total Expenditures	 8,811,807
Net Change in Fund Balance	2,253,433
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year	8,254,936
Prior Period Adjustment	 1,681,300
Fund Balance, End of Year	\$ 12,189,669

# COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### **NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES**

Reporting Entity: The Measure T Sales Tax Program (the Measure T Fund) is administered by the Madera County Transportation Authority (the Authority) and was created by the approval of the Measure T Fund by the voters of the County of Madera, California (the County) in November 2006. The Measure T Fund authorized the imposition of a one-half percent (1/2%) retail transaction and use tax (sales tax) in the County for 20 years through the year 2027. The proceeds from the Measure T Fund are principally reserved for regional projects, local transportation, public transportation, and environmental enhancement. The sales tax revenues received by the Authority under the Measure T Fund, after deducting certain administrative costs, are to be spent for programs as set forth in the investment plan included in the Measure T Fund and approved by the voters of the County.

The primary elements of the Measure T Fund consist of the following:

<u>Commute Corridor/Farm to Market Program (Regional Transportation Program)</u> – authorizes major new projects to improve freeway interchanges, adds additional lanes, increases safety as determined by the local jurisdictions, and improves and reconstructs major commute corridors.

<u>Safe Routes to Schools and Jobs Program (Local Transportation Program)</u> – goal of this program is to improve each individual County's local transportation systems.

<u>Transit Enhancement Program (Public Transportation Program)</u> – goal of this program is to expand or enhance public transit programs that address the transit dependent population and have a demonstrated ability to get people out of their cars and improve air quality.

<u>Environmental Enhancement Program</u> – goal of this program is to improve air quality and the environment through four programs: environmental mitigation, air quality, bicycle/pedestrian facilities, and car/van pools.

<u>Administration and Planning Program</u> – funding is provided to the Authority to prepare investment plan updates, develop allocation program requirements, and administer and conduct specified activities identified in the other four programs.

The financial statements of the Measure T Fund, a special revenue fund of the County, have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Measure T Fund's accounting policies are described below.

<u>Financial Statements</u>: The Measure T enabling legislation provides funding of highway and street projects. Funds are allocated to the County through the county transportation planning agency, the Authority. The Measure T Fund accounts for the County's share of the Measure T sales tax allocations, which are legally restricted for specific purposes as detailed in Section 99245 of the Public Utilities Code.

The accompanying financial statements present only the Measure T Fund of the County and are not intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of the County as a whole in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

<u>Fund Accounting</u>: The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

# COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

## Fund Accounting (continued):

The Measure T Fund is a governmental fund specifically categorized as a special revenue fund. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting: The Measure T Fund is reported using the "current financial resources" measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available, and expenditures are recognized when the fund liabilities are incurred. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County uses an availability period of 60 days. Revenues that are susceptible to accrual include Measure T sales tax allocations and investment earnings. Intergovernmental revenues (primarily grants and subventions), which are received as reimbursement for specific purposes or projects, are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. Intergovernmental revenues, which are usually unrestricted as to use and are revocable only for failure to meet prescribed compliance requirements, are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier, if they meet the availability criterion.

<u>Cash and Investments</u>: The cash is held by the Measure T Fund as part of the County's pooled cash and investments. The pooled funds are invested in accordance with the County's investment policy established pursuant to state law. All monies not required for immediate expenses are invested or deposited to earn maximum yield consistent with safety and liquidity. Interest earnings are allocated to the fund based on its proportionate share of the pool. Refer to the County's basic financial statements for disclosures of cash and investments and related risk categorization.

<u>Accounts Receivable</u>: The Measure T Fund utilizes the allowance method of accounting for and reporting uncollectible or doubtful accounts. At June 30, 2024, management considered all accounts to be fully collectible and, therefore, no allowance was recorded in the accompanying financial statements.

<u>Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:</u> In addition to assets, the Measure T Fund balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure) until then. The Measure T Fund has no items to report in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the Measure T Fund balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has items that qualify for reporting in this category that are related to unavailable revenue. Unavailable revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet met the revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The County records unavailable revenue for transactions for which revenues have been earned, but for which funds are not available to meet current financial obligations. As of June 30, 2024, the Measure T Fund had unavailable revenue in the amount of \$1,945,592.

<u>Management's Use of Estimates</u>: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.

### COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

<u>Fund Balance</u>: In the fund financial statements, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, *Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions*, governmental funds report the fund balance as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the Measure T Fund is bound to honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent.

- Nonspendable Amounts indicate the portion of fund balances which cannot be spent because they are
  either not in spendable form, such as prepaid items, inventories, or loans receivable, or legally or
  contractually required to be maintained intact, such as the principal portion of an endowment. The
  Measure T Fund did not have any nonspendable resources as of June 30, 2024.
- Restricted Amounts indicate the portion of fund balances which have been restricted; a) externally
  imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
  other governments; or b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The
  Measure T Fund considers all of its resources to be restricted at June 30, 2024.
- Committed Amounts indicate the portion of fund balances which are constrained to specific purposes by the Measure T Fund itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority (Board of Supervisors). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Supervisors takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the constraint. The Measure T Fund did not have any committed resources as of June 30, 2024.
- Assigned Amounts indicate the portion of fund balances which are constrained by the County's intent to
  be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. The County's Finance Director is
  authorized to determine and define the amount of assigned fund balances. The Measure T Fund did not
  have any assigned resources as of June 30, 2024.
- Unassigned Amounts indicate the portion of fund balances that do not fall into one of the above categories. The Measure T Fund did not have any unassigned resources as of June 30, 2024.

The Board of Supervisors establishes, modifies, or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments by passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is done through the adoption of the budget and subsequent budget amendments that occur throughout the year.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) fund balances are available, the County's policy is to first apply restricted fund balance. When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the County's policy is to first apply committed fund balance, then assigned fund balance, and finally unassigned fund balance.

<u>Governmental Accounting Standards Update</u>: During the year ending June 30, 2024, the Measure T Fund implemented the following standards on the financial statements:

GASB Statement No. 99 – *Omnibus 2022*. The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 100 – *Accounting Changes and Error Corrections* – an amendment of GASB statement No. 62. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 101 – *Compensated Absences*. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2023.

### COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 102 – *Certain Risk Disclosures*. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2024.

GASB Statement No. 103 – *Financial Reporting Model Improvements*. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2025.

GASB Statement No. 104 – *Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets*. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2025.

<u>Subsequent Events</u>: In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be disclosed in the financial statements. Management has determined that no events require disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. These subsequent events have been evaluated through August 6, 2025, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

### NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS IN THE COUNTY'S POOL

The County has pooled its cash and investments in order to achieve a higher return on investments while facilitating management of cash. Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in various interest-bearing accounts and other investments for varying terms. As of June 30, 2024, the balance of the Measure T Fund's cash and investments is \$19,126,386.

The Measure T Fund's cash is deposited in the County's internal investment pool, which is reported at fair value. The Measure T Fund does not own specifically identifiable securities in the County's pool. The balance of cash deposited in the County's pool was \$19,126,386 as of June 30, 2024.

Investment earnings are allocated based on average cash balances. Investment policies and associated risk factors applicable to the Measure T Fund are those of the County and are included in the County's basic financial statements.

#### **NOTE 3 – RESTRICTIONS**

Funds received pursuant to the Measure T enabling legislation in the Measure T Fund may only be used for highways and streets.

### **NOTE 4 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES**

Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Measure T Fund.

The Measure T Fund is subject to program compliance audits by the grantors and their representatives. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material.

### COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

### NOTE 5 – ADVANCES FROM OTHER FUNDS

The Measure T Fund was advanced a total of \$6,000,000 from the High Speed Rail Fund of the County to cover the costs of a construction project. At June 30, 2024, the balance on the advanced funds totaled \$6,000,000.

### NOTE 6 - DUE TO THE COUNTY

As of June 30, 2024, the Measure T Fund owes the County in the amount of \$936,852 to cover reimbursements for a project paid for by other County funds.

#### NOTE 7 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A prior period adjustment was made to account for an expenditure that was identified by management as a duplicate transaction recorded in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023. The effect of the prior period adjustment was an increase in beginning fund balance of \$1,681,300.

### COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

# COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND BALANCE SHEET BY FUNDING SOURCE JUNE 30, 2024

	Commute Corridors/ Farm to Market	Safe Routes to School and Jobs	Transit Enhancement	Environmental Enhancement	Total
ASSETS					
Cash and investments Intergovernmental receivable Due from the County	\$ 9,091,916 949,068 135	\$ 9,445,745 914,145 	\$ 155,783 6,454 -	\$ 432,942 75,925 	\$19,126,386 1,945,592 135
Total Assets	\$10,041,119	\$10,359,890	\$ 162,237	\$ 508,867	\$21,072,113
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE					
Liabilities					
Advances from other funds	\$ 6,000,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 6,000,000
Due to the County	2,245	934,607			936,852
Total Liabilities	6,002,245	934,607			6,936,852
Deferred Inflows of Resources					
Unavailable revenue	949,068	914,145	6,454	75,925	1,945,592
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources	949,068	914,145	6,454	75,925	1,945,592
Fund Balance Restricted	3,089,806	8,511,138	155,783	432,942	12,189,669
Total Fund Balance	3,089,806	8,511,138	155,783	432,942	12,189,669
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance	\$10,041,119	\$10,359,890	\$ 162,237	\$ 508,867	\$21,072,113

## COUNTY OF MADERA MEASURE T FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BY FUNDING SOURCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

REVENUES	Commute Corridors/ Farm to Market	Safe Routes to School and Jobs	Transit Enhancement		
Measure T sales tax	\$ 1,500,171	\$ 1,444,965	\$ 10,201	\$ 120,014	\$ 3,075,351
Investment income	169,501	227,239	3,880	9,369	409,989
Other income	7,579,900	-	-	-	7,579,900
Total Revenues	9,249,572	1,672,204	14,081	129,383	11,065,240
EXPENDITURES					
Public ways and facilities:					
Highways and streets	7,341,252	1,470,555	-	-	8,811,807
Total Expenditures	7,341,252	1,470,555			8,811,807
Net Change in Fund Balance	1,908,320	201,649	14,081	129,383	2,253,433
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year	(499,814)	8,309,489	141,702	303,559	8,254,936
Prior Period Adjustment	1,681,300			<u>-</u>	1,681,300
Fund Balance, End of Year	\$ 3,089,806	\$ 8,511,138	\$ 155,783	\$ 432,942	\$12,189,669



# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE MEASURE T ENABLING LEGISLATION

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Madera, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Measure T Special Revenue Fund (the Measure T Fund) of the County of Madera, California (the County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Measure T Fund's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 6, 2025.

### **Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal control over financial reporting (internal control), as it relates to the Measure T Fund as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the County's Measure T Fund financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

### **Report on Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Measure T Fund financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our audit was further made to determine that allocations made and expended by the County were made in accordance with the Measure T Enabling Legislation. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

### **Purpose of This Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Measure T Fund's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Measure T Fund's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

**HUDSON & COMPANY, INC.** 

When + Compay, Jac.

Fresno, California August 6, 2025

# Madera County Transportation Authority Madera, CA

**Financial Statements** 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024



### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
Independent Auditor's Report	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis	5
Basic Financial Statements:	
Government-Wide Financial Statements:	
Statement of Net Position	12
Statement of Activities	13
Fund Financial Statements:	
Governmental Funds:	
Balance Sheet	15
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position	16
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances	17
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities	18
Fiduciary Funds:	
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Private-Purpose Trust Fund	19
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Private-Purpose Trust Fund	20
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements	22
Required Supplementary Information:	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund	33
Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule	34
Supplementary Information:	
Schedule of Measure T Sales Tax Receipts	36

### TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

	PAGE
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	37
Findings and Questioned Costs:	
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs	40
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings	41
Corrective Action Plan	42



- The Place to Be

### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Madera County Transportation Authority

Madera, California

### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

### **Opinions**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Madera County Transportation Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Authority, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

570 N. Magnolia Avenue, Suite 100 Clovis, CA 93611

> tel 559.299.9540 fax 559.299.2344

### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

### **Required Supplementary Information**

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 5–9 and 33–34 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

### Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Measure T Sales Tax Receipts is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Measure T Sales Tax Receipts is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated July 24, 2025, on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Clovis, California

Prue Page & Company

July 24, 2025

### **MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS**

### MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY | JUNE 30, 2024

Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Madera County Transportation Authority (the Authority), we offer readers of the Authority's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. We encourage the readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Authority's financial audit.

### **Financial Highlights**

- 1. The assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by \$10,979,933 (net position).
- 2. The Authority's total net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, increased by \$3,566,370 primarily because of lower expenditures on capital outlay costs.
- 3. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of \$11,323,241, an increase of \$2,218,473 in comparison with the prior year. The amount of \$1,541,226 is restricted for debt service and specific regional capital projects and \$9,764,685 is assigned for road improvements.

### **Overview of the Financial Statements**

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority's basic financial statements. The Authority's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

### **Basic Financial Statements**

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are **Government-Wide Financial Statements**. They provide both short and long-term information about the Authority's financial status.

The next statements are **Fund Financial Statements**. These statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the Authority's government. These financial statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are two parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental fund statements and 2) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the **Notes**. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements.

**Government-wide financial statements**. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority's finances, in a manner like a private-sector business, and consist of the following two statements:

The **statement of net position** presents information on the Authority's net position and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The **statement of activities** presents information showing how the Authority's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, the revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods.

### MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY | JUNE 30, 2024

Management's Discussion and Analysis

The government-wide financial statements report on the functions of the Authority that are principally supported by sales tax revenues. The Authority's function is to provide administration and planning services for the Measure T program.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 to 13 of this report.

**Fund financial statements**. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Madera County Transportation Authority, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

**Governmental funds**. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, tax revenue fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 through 18 of this report.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

**Trust funds**. Trust funds are used to account for Measure T resources held for the benefit of local agencies (City of Madera, County of Madera, and the City of Chowchilla). The Authority has one trust fund (Measure T Trust Funds). Trust funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Authority's programs.

The basic trust fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 20 of this report.

**Notes to the financial statements.** The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 22 through 31 of this report.

**Other information**. This report also presents certain required supplemental information concerning compliance with the Authority's annual budget for the General Fund, which is the Authority's main operating fund. This information and associated notes immediately follow the basic financial statements and their accompanying notes.

### **Government-Wide Financial Analysis**

Following are the government-wide financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024:

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by \$10,979,933 at the close of the fiscal year 2023-24.

## MCTA Net Position Condensed Statement of Net Position Figure 1

	 2024	 2023
Assets:	42.255.000	45 007 002
Current assets Noncurrent assets	\$ 12,255,008 2,855,483	\$ 15,087,902 506,688
Nonean ene assets	 2,000,100	 300,000
Total assets	 15,110,491	 15,594,590
Liabilities:		
Other liabilities	3,795,558	6,523,628
Long-term liabilities	 335,000	 1,657,399
Total liabilities	 4,130,558	 8,181,027
Net position:		
Restricted	1,541,226	506,688
Unrestricted	 9,438,707	 6,906,875
Total net position	\$ 10,979,933	\$ 7,413,563

## MCTA Changes in Net Position Condensed Statement of Activities Figure 2

	 2024	 2023
Revenues:		
Program revenues:		
Operating grants and contributions	\$ 20,240	\$ 34,857
General revenues:		
Sales taxes	8,098,043	7,909,326
Interest income	 333,732	 164,119
Total revenues	8,452,015	8,108,302
		_
Expenses:		
Public ways and facilities	4,923,656	5,113,381
Interest on long-term debt	(38,011)	215,050
, and the second		 
Total expenses	4,885,645	5,328,431
Change in net position	3,566,370	2,779,871
	, ,	, ,
Net position - beginning	7,413,563	4,633,692
-	 	 ·
Net position - ending	\$ 10,979,933	\$ 7,413,563

Governmental Activities: The Authority's net position increased by \$3,566,370 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. The table above indicates the change in net position for governmental activities. The key elements of this increase are primarily attributable to lower than planned capital project expenditures this fiscal year. Budget and fund financial statements reflect the modified accrual basis of accounting under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Under this approach, capital assets purchased and debt principal payments are recorded as expenditures. Further, revenues are accrued if measurable and available within the Authority's availability period established at 90 days. Conversely, the statement of activities is reported under the accrual basis of accounting, which capitalizes capital asset purchases, reduces liabilities by principal payments and recognizes revenues collected after the 90-day period.

### The Authority's Funds

As the Authority completed this year, our governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of \$11,323,241, which is an increase of \$2,218,473 from last year.

The primary reason for this change is:

1. The capital projects fund balance increased by \$2,218,476 due to lower expenditures on capital projects this fiscal year.

### MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY | JUNE 30, 2024

Management's Discussion and Analysis

### **General Fund Budgetary Highlights**

During the year there was no change between the original budget and the final budget for the General Fund. Actual revenues were more than the final budget by \$59,799 and expenditures were more than the final budget by \$59,802. The net effect of these differences results in a decrease of \$3 in the fund balance in the general fund.

### **Long-Term Obligations**

At the end of fiscal year, the Authority had \$335,000 in debt outstanding. The debt consisted of Series 2009 of the sales tax revenue bonds (see Note 6).

### **Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget**

The Authority began to receive sales tax revenues under Measure T in Fiscal Year 2007/08. As approved by Madera County voters in November 2006, Measure T provides funding for all modes of transportation and enables agencies within the County to address the needs of residents, businesses, and major industries in providing for road improvements, public transit, and other programs that improve mobility and air quality.

The following economic factors were considered in preparing the Authority's fiscal year 2024-25 budget:

- A. Projected no change in sales tax receipts in 2024-25 compared to actual sales tax receipts in 2023-24.
- B. Estimated expenditures for capital projects in the amount of \$6,714,040.
- C. Bond Debt Service in the amount of \$347,462.

### Contacting Madera County 2006 Transportation Authority's Financial Manager

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority's accountability for the money it receives. Additional financial information can be obtained by contacting Patricia Taylor, Executive Director, Madera County 2006 Transportation Authority, 2001 Howard Road, Suite 201, Madera, California 93637.

### **BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

**GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS** 

	Governmental Activities
ASSETS	
Cash and investments	\$ 10,247,028
Measure T sales tax receivable	2,007,980
Restricted assets:	
Cash and investments	2,855,483
Total assets	15,110,491
LIABILITIES	
Accounts payable	290,920
Interest payable	8,308
Due to trust funds	3,262,371
Due to other governments	233,959
Long-term liabilities:	
Portion due or payable within one year:	
Bonds payable	335,000
Total liabilities	4,130,558
NET POSITION	
Restricted for:	
Debt service	1,538,245
Capital projects	2,981
Unrestricted	9,438,707
Total net position	\$ 10,979,933

		Program	n Revenues	Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
	Expenses	Charges for Services	Operating Grants and Contributions	Governmental Activities
<u>Functions/Programs</u> Governmental activities:		Services	Contributions	Activities
Public ways and facilities Interest on long-term debt	\$ 4,923,656 (38,011)	\$ -	φ ==0,= . σ	\$ (4,903,416) 38,011
Total governmental activities	\$ 4,885,645	\$ -	\$ 20,240	(4,865,405)
	General revenues: Taxes:			
	Sales taxes			8,098,043
	Interest income			333,732
	Total general rever	nues		8,431,775
	Change in net posi	tion		3,566,370
	Net position - begi	nning		7,413,563
	Net position - endi	ng		\$ 10,979,933

**FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS** 

### MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY | JUNE 30, 2024

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

	 General Fund		Capital Projects Fund	Go	Total overnmental Funds
ASSETS					
Cash and investments	\$ 3,505,334	\$	6,741,694	\$	10,247,028
Restricted cash and investments	-		2,855,483		2,855,483
Due from other funds	24,979		1,347,610		1,372,589
Receivables:					
Measure T sales tax	 41,189	_	1,966,791		2,007,980
Total assets	\$ 3,571,502	\$	12,911,578	\$	16,483,080
LIABILITIES					
Accounts payable	\$ -	\$	290,920	\$	290,920
Due to other funds	3,320,703		1,314,257		4,634,960
Due to other governments	 233,469		490		233,959
Total liabilities	 3,554,172		1,605,667		5,159,839
FUND BALANCES					
Restricted:					
Debt service	-		1,538,245		1,538,245
Capital projects	-		2,981		2,981
Assigned:					
Road improvements	-		9,764,685		9,764,685
Unassigned	 17,330		<u>-</u>		17,330
Total fund balances	 17,330		11,305,911	_	11,323,241
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$ 3,571,502	\$	12,911,578	\$	16,483,080

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds \$ 11,323,241

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Bonds payable (335,000)

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial resources; therefore, interest payable is not reported as a liability in the governmental funds balance sheet.

(8,308)

Net position of governmental activities

\$ 10,979,933

**Governmental Funds** 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

	 General Fund		Capital Projects Fund	Go	Total overnmental Funds
REVENUES					
Sales tax	\$ 584,786	\$	7,513,257	\$	8,098,043
Federal revenue	-		20,240		20,240
Interest revenue	 3,099		330,633		333,732
Total revenues	 587,885	-	7,864,130		8,452,015
EXPENDITURES					
Current:					
Public ways and facilities:					
Administration and planning	587,888		-		587,888
Debt service:					
Principal	-		1,220,000		1,220,000
Interest	-		91,344		91,344
Capital outlay - road improvements	 		4,334,310		4,334,310
Total expenditures	 587,888		5,645,654		6,233,542
Excess (deficiency) of revenues					
over (under) expenditures	 (3)		2,218,476		2,218,473
Net change in fund balances	(3)		2,218,476		2,218,473
Fund balances - beginning	 17,333		9,087,435		9,104,768
Fund balances - ending	\$ 17,330	\$	11,305,911	\$	11,323,241

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

Change in net position of governmental activities

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

merent because.	
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds	\$ 2,218,473
Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, however, in the statement of net position the repayment reduces long-term liabilities.  Repayment of long-term debt	1,220,000
Premiums on bonds are amortized over the term of the bond in the government-wide statements but are recorded as an other source of funds in the year of issue on the governmental fund statements.	102,399
Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, interest expense is recognized as the interest	
accrues, regardless of when it is due.	25,498

3,566,370

### MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY | JUNE 30, 2024

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Private-Purpose Trust Fund

ASSETS	
Cash and investments	\$ 1,061,527
Measure T sales tax receivable	2,110,954
Due from other funds	 3,262,371
Total assets	 6,434,852
LIABILITIES	
Due to other governments	 6,414,454
Total liabilities	 6,414,454
NET POSITION	
Restricted for:	
Other governments	 20,398
Total net position	\$ 20,398

**Fiduciary Funds** 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Private-Purpose Trust Fund

ADDITIONS	
Sales tax	\$ 8,063,968
Investment income	 94,022
Total additions	 8,157,990
DEDUCTIONS	
Disbursements to local agencies	 8,150,678
Total deductions	 8,150,678
Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position	7,312
Net position - beginning	 13,086
Net position - ending	\$ 20,398

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

### A. Scope of Financial Reporting Entity

The Madera County Transportation Authority (the Authority) was created by the approval of Measure T by the voters of Madera County, California (the County) in November 2006. Measure T authorized the imposition of a ½% retail transaction and use tax (sales tax) in the County for 20 years through the year 2027.

The proceeds from Measure T are principally reserved for regional projects, local transportation, public transportation, and environmental enhancement.

The sales tax revenues received by the Authority under Measure T, after deducting certain administrative costs, are to be spent for programs as set forth in the investment plan included in Measure T and approved by the voters of the County.

The primary elements of the Measure T Program consist of the following:

Commute Corridor/Farm to Market Program (Regional Transportation Program) – authorizes major new projects to improve freeway interchanges, adds additional lanes, increases safety as determined by the local jurisdictions, and improves and reconstructs major commute corridors.

Safe Routes to Schools and Jobs Program (Local Transportation Program) – goal of this program is to improve each individual City's and the County's local transportation systems.

Transit Enhancement Program (Public Transportation Program) – goal of this program is to expand or enhance public transit programs that address the transit dependent population and have a demonstrated ability to get people out of their cars and improve air quality.

*Environmental Enhancement Program* – goal of this program is to improve air quality and the environment through four programs: environmental mitigation, air quality, bicycle/pedestrian facilities, and car/van pools.

Administration and Planning Program – funding is provided to the Authority to prepare investment plan updates, develop allocation program requirements, and administer and conduct specified activities identified in the other four programs.

### B. Madera County Transportation Authority Structure Under the Measure T Program

The Authority administers the Measure T Program in compliance with PUC 180000. The Authority is responsible for administering the Measure T Program in accordance with plans and programs outlined in the Investment Plan and any subsequent updates.

PUC 180000 includes provisions regarding the number of members on the Authority Board. Specifically, the Authority is represented by six (6) members including:

- Three (3) members of the Board of Supervisors, appointed by the Board.
- Two (2) members representing the City of Madera, consisting of members of the City Council, appointed by the City Council.
- One (1) member representing the City of Chowchilla consisting of a member of the City Council, appointed by the City Council.

### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

### C. Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements consist of the following:

- Government-wide financial statements
- Fund financial statements
- Notes to the basic financial statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, and report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated.

Both of the government-wide and fund financial statements distinguish functions of the Authority that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities).

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct and indirect expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or activity. Indirect expenses are allocated based on the annual cost allocation plan. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or activity; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Other items, not properly included among program revenues, are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and trust funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

#### D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the trust funds financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified-accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Authority considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due and payable.

The fund financial statements provide information about the Authority's individual funds including governmental and private-purpose trust funds. Separate statements for each fund category are presented. The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances focus on the presentation of major governmental funds – the General Fund and Capital Projects Funds. These two statements are used to report information regarding the Authority's own operations and programs. The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position provide information regarding the sales tax proceeds and related disbursements, which are exclusively restricted for local agencies for the support of regional public transit, local transportation and regional transportation within the County. Disbursements of Measure T funds during the fiscal year ended June 30 were made to the Cities of Madera and Chowchilla, and the County of Madera.

### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

### D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statements (Continued)

The Authority reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund – the Authority's primary operating fund, used to account for all the financial resources and the legally authorized activities of the Authority except those required to be accounted for in other specialized funds.

Capital Projects Fund – used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used to pay the costs of capital projects designated by Measure T.

The Authority reports the following fiduciary fund:

*Private-Purpose Trust Fund* – used to account for Measure T sales tax funds held by the Authority in a trustee capacity.

### E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The Authority does not consider amounts invested in external investment pools, such as the Madera County Treasury, to be cash equivalents.

### F. Deposits with the Madera County Treasury

The Authority deposits all funds received in the County Treasury. Funds in the County Treasury participate in the County's pooled investments, an external investment pool. The County Treasurer invests the Authority's excess cash in an external investment pool on behalf of the Authority and other governments maintaining cash in the County Treasury. The County apportions some of the interest earned on pooled investments on the basis of the fund's average balance. Investment policies and associated risk factors applicable to the Authority are those of the County of Madera. All of the County's investments in securities are insured, registered, or are held by the County or its agents in the County's name.

The County of Madera Board of Supervisors exercises primary oversight responsibility for the County of Madera's investments. The County Treasurer manages the portfolio and reports the results to the Board. A Madera County Treasury Oversight Committee consisting of the County Treasurer, the Auditor-Controller, and a third member representing the County schools (the primary external pool participant) also monitors the Treasury's investment on a regular basis. No regulatory agency outside of the County of Madera exercises any regulatory responsibilities over the County's investments. The County's pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company.

### **G.** Interfund Balances

Sales tax receipts from the State are deposited into the General Fund upon receipt and subsequently transferred to the Capital Projects and Trust Funds. Amounts that have not been transferred between funds at the end of the fiscal year, as well as all other outstanding balances between funds, are reported as "due to/from other funds". Internal balances are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

#### H. Accounts Payable

Accounts payable reported in the financial statements of the Authority are amounts that are due and payable at year-end and, thereby, accrued as an expense and liability.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

#### I. Interest Payable

In the government-wide financial statements, interest payable of long-term debt is recognized as the liability is incurred for governmental fund types.

### J. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

### K. Fund Balance Classification

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the Authority is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted – This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed – This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Directors. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Directors removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned – This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the Authority's intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the Board of Directors or through the Board of Directors delegating this responsibility to the Authority Manager through the budgetary process. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund.

*Unassigned* – This classification includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the Authority.

The Authority generally uses restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.

### MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY | JUNE 30, 2024

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

### L. Net Position

In government-wide financial statements, net position is reported in three categories as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of the assets.

Restricted – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

*Unrestricted* – This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition of "net investment in capital assets" or "restricted net position".

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, the Authority generally applies restricted net position first.

### M. <u>Use of Estimates</u>

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

### NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A reconciliation of the total fund balances for governmental funds to the total net position of governmental activities has been prepared as part of the basic financial statements, including explanations of differences.

A reconciliation of the total net change in fund balances for governmental funds to the total changes in net position of governmental activities has been prepared as part of the basic financial statements, including explanations of differences.

### NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Madera County Transportation Commission (the Commission) maintains the Madera County Transportation Authority's accounting records and incurs various administrative, Measure T renewal costs, and other expenses on behalf of the Authority. Expenses incurred by the Authority to the Commission during the fiscal year June 30, 2024 totaled \$587,885. The total accounts payable to the Commission was \$233,959 for the year ended June 30, 2024.

### **NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS**

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2024 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of net position:	
Cash and investments	\$ 10,247,028
Restricted cash and investments	2,855,483
Statement of fiduciary net position:	
Cash and investments	 1,061,527
Total cash and investments	\$ 14,164,038
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2024 consist of the following:	
County investment pool	\$ 11,312,484
Investments	 2,851,554
Total cash and investments	\$ 14,164,038

### A. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Authority's Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Authority by the California Government Code or the Authority's investment policy, where more restrictive. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code or the Authority's investment policy, where more restrictive, that address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk.

		Maximum	Maximum
	Maximum	Percentage	Investment
Authorized Investment Type	Maturity	of Portfolio	in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds	5 years	None	None
U.S. Treasury Obligations	5 years	None	None
U.S. Agency Securities	5 years	None	None
Banker's Acceptances	180 days	40%	None
Commercial Paper	270 days	None	None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit	5 years	None	None
Repurchase Agreements	1 year	None	None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements	92 days	None	None
Medium-Term Notes	5 years	None	None
Mutual Funds	n/a	None	None
Money Market Mutual Funds	n/a	None	None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities	5 years	None	None
County Pooled Investment Funds	n/a	100%	None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)	n/a	None	None

### **Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements**

Investments of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, in accordance with the provisions of the Government Code of the State of California.

### NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

### B. <u>Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk</u>

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Authority's investment by maturity:

Investment Type	Amount	Remaining Maturity Date
County investment pool Held by bond trustee:	\$ 11,312,484	12 months or less
BlackRock Treasury Trust Institutional	 2,851,554	12 months or less
Total investments	\$ 14,164,038	

### C. Disclosures Related to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the Authority's investment policy, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type. The column marked "exempt from disclosure" identifies those investment types for which GASB No. 40 does not require disclosures as to credit risk.

		Exempt from	F	Rating as of Year-End
Investment Type	Amount	Disclosure		AAAm
County investment pool Held by bond trustee:	\$ 11,312,484	\$ 11,312,484	\$	-
BlackRock Treasury Trust Institutional	 2,851,554	 <del>-</del>		2,851,554
Total investments	\$ 14,164,038	\$ 11,312,484	\$	2,851,554

Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools. The County of Madera issues a financial report that includes custodial risk disclosures for the County investment pool. This report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the Auditor-Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector, 200 West 4<sup>th</sup> Street #2300, Madera, California 93637.

### D. Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the Authority contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer, with the exception to Banker's Acceptances, which has a maximum percentage of 40%. The Authority had over 5 percent of total investments in BlackRock Treasury Trust Institutional.

### **NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS** (Continued)

### E. <u>Investment Valuation</u>

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Fair value measurements of the Authority's investments are as follows at June 30, 2024.

- Investment in the County's pooled investments: valued at \$11,312,484. The County invests in numerous types of investments ranging all levels in the fair value hierarchy. Accordingly, the County's pool investments are not an investment type that can be categorized in any particular level in the fair value hierarchy.
- Investments held by bond trustee: valued at \$2,851,554, invested in BlackRock Treasury Trust Institutional, a Level 1 input.

### **NOTE 5 – INTERFUND BALANCES**

### A. <u>Due From/Due To Other Funds</u>

Interfund receivable and payable balances arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds affected in the period in which transactions are executed and are expected to be paid shortly after the end of the fiscal year.

Activities within due from/due to other fund balances at June 30, 2024 are as follows:

	Due from		Due to		
Governmental Funds:					
General Fund	\$	24,979	\$	3,320,703	
Capital Projects Fund		1,347,610		1,314,257	
Total governmental funds		1,372,589		4,634,960	
Private-Purpose Trust Funds		3,262,371	_	<u>-</u>	
Total	\$	4,634,960	\$	4,634,960	

The above balances reflect the sales tax allocations at June 30, 2024.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

### **NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES**

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 consist of the following:

	Jı	Balance uly 1, 2023	Additions		F	Reductions	Balance June 30, 2024	Due within One Year
General obligation bonds: Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - Series 2010 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2010-	\$	585,000	\$	- :	\$	(585,000)	\$ -	\$ -
premiums, net of amortization  Total general obligation bonds	<u> </u>	102,399 687,399		<u> </u>	_	(102,399) (687,399)		
Direct placement: Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - Series 2009 Total direct placement	_	970,000 970,000		<u> </u>		(635,000) (635,000)	335,000 335,000	335,000 335,000
Total	\$	1,657,399	\$	<u>-</u>	\$	(1,322,399)	\$ 335,000	\$ 335,000

Payments on the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds are made by the Capital Projects Fund.

### A. <u>SERIES 2009</u>

The series 2009 bonds were issued on October 28, 2009, with a maturity date of September 1, 2024, and an interest rate of 7.44%. Semiannual principal reductions on the bonds range from \$80,000 to \$335,000. The bonds are secured by sales tax revenues. There is a provision in the bonds whereby in the event of default the lender may declare the entire unpaid principal and interest immediately due and payable.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the series 2009 bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30	Principal	Interest	Total
2025	335,000	 12,462	347,462
Total	\$ 335,000	\$ 12,462	\$ 347,462

### B. <u>SERIES 2010</u>

The series 2010 bonds were issued on June 29, 2010, with an initial maturity date of March 1, 2025, and an interest rate between 2.00-4.00%. The Authority made additional principal and interest payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, revising the maturity date to March 1, 2024. Annual principal reductions on the bonds range from \$630,000 to \$1,505,000. The bonds are secured by sales tax revenues. There is a provision in the bonds whereby in the event of default the lender may declare the entire unpaid principal and interest immediately due and payable. The bond fully matured during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.

### **NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT**

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft, damage to, and destruction of assets, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The Authority manages and finances these risks by purchasing commercial insurance for which a \$1,000 deductible applies. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year, nor have settled claims exceeded the Authority's commercial insurance coverage.

### MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY | JUNE 30, 2024

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

### **NOTE 8 – COMMITMENTS**

The Authority has entered into various cooperative agreements with governmental entities amounting to a total commitment of \$72,550,580. The Authority has made cumulative expenditures of \$65,090,064 on these commitments through June 30, 2024; therefore, the Authority's outstanding commitments at June 30, 2024, total \$7,460,516.

As of June 30, 2024, the Authority had the following commitments with respect to the unfinished capital projects:

			Completion
Project		Amount	Date
SR 41 Passing Lanes (Environmental Mitigation) SR 233 Interchange Operational Improvements (Through E&P, PS&E, R/W)	\$ —	988,072 6,472,444	12/31/25 06/30/26
Total	\$	7,460,516	

### **NOTE 9 – SUBSEQUENT EVENT**

Measure T was approved by voters in November 2006. It established the Madera County Transportation Authority and authorized a ½ cent retail transaction and use tax for 20 years (between April 1, 2007 thru March 31, 2027) specifically to fund transportation projects and programs in the County. It followed Madera County's previous Measure A Program, which was approved in 1990 and expired in September 2005.

The Measure T renewal passed during the November 2024 election under a citizen's initiative expenditure plan. The Measure T renewal will start collecting sales tax revenue in April 2027.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund

	 Budgeted Amounts					Variance with					
	Original		Final		Final		Final		Actual	Final	Budget
REVENUES											
Sales tax	\$ 469,912	\$	528,086	\$	584,786	\$	56,700				
Interest revenue	 -				3,099		3,099				
Total revenues	 469,912		528,086		587,885		59,799				
EXPENDITURES											
Current:											
Public ways and facilities:											
Administration and planning	 469,912		528,086		587,888		(59,802)				
Total expenditures	 469,912		528,086		587,888		(59,802)				
Net change in fund balances	\$ -	\$	_		(3)	\$	(3)				
Fund balance - beginning					17,333						
Fund balance - ending				\$	17,330						

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule

### **NOTE 1 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING**

The Authority adopts a legal annual operating budget for its General Fund. All budget transfers and expenditures are approved by the Board or by the Authority Administrator prior to disbursement. The legal level of budgetary control is at the account balance level. The final budget revenue and expenditure amounts represent the original budget modified by any amendments and adjustments that have occurred during the year. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

A budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund is presented on page 33. Its purpose is to demonstrate compliance with the approved budget for fiscal year 2023-2024. Actual expenditures appearing on the schedule are presented using the accrual method of accounting.

### **NOTE 2 – EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS**

As of June 30, 2024, expenditures exceeded apportionments in the General Fund as follows:

		Excess
Appropriations Category	Exp	penditures
Current:		
Public ways and facilities:		
Administration and planning	\$	59,802

### **SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION**

Fiscal Year	Total Sales Tax Receipts *	Changes from Previous Year
2007/08	\$ 7,707,106	
2008/09	7,311,825	-5.13%
2009/10	6,118,354	-16.32%
2010/11	6,939,324	13.42%
2011/12	7,775,292	12.05%
2012/13	7,960,277	2.38%
2013/14	8,439,910	6.03%
2014/15	9,017,126	6.84%
2015/16	9,327,292	3.44%
2016/17	9,521,593	2.08%
2017/18	9,810,897	3.04%
2018/19	10,398,296	5.99%
2019/20	10,534,761	1.31%
2020/21	12,872,191	22.19%
2021/22	15,723,648	22.15%
2022/23	16,263,082	3.43%
2023/24	14,922,855	-8.24%

<sup>\*</sup> Cash basis net of State Board of Equalization fees



The Place to Be

# INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors Madera County Transportation Authority Madera, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Madera County Transportation Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 24, 2025.

### **Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We identified a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2024-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

570 N. Magnolia Avenue, Suite 100 Clovis, CA 93611

> tel 559.299.9540 fax 559.299.2344

### **Report on Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

### The Authority's Response to Finding

Price Page & Company

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Authority's response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Authority's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

### **Purpose of This Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Authority's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Clovis, California July 24, 2025 FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

# FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Type of auditor's report issued: Internal control over financial reporting: Material weaknesses identified? Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? Noncompliance material to financial

### **SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS**

statements noted?

Finding 2024-001 Misstatements in Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Sales Tax Receivables (Material Weakness)

Yes

Χ

### Condition:

During our audit of the Authority's financial statements, we identified material misstatements in interfund receivables and payables, as well as in sales tax receivables, across multiple funds.

### Criteria:

A strong system of internal controls and management review requires that general ledger account balances be properly reconciled to adequate supporting documentation during the year-end financial close process in order to accurately and completely close the current year general ledger in a timely matter. Management is responsible for maintaining its accounting records in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

### Cause:

These misstatements occurred because the trustee did not remit certain sales tax revenues to the Authority's account at Madera County by year-end.

### Effect:

The financial statements initially presented misstated interfund account balances and sales tax receivable across the following funds:

- The General Fund:
  - Sales tax receivable was overstated by approximately \$3,616,500.
  - Due to other funds was overstated by approximately \$3,591,500.
  - Due from other funds was understated by approximately \$25,000.
- The Capital Projects Fund:
  - Sales tax receivable was understated by approximately \$486,900.
  - Due to other funds was overstated by approximately \$1,183,700.
  - Due from other funds was overstated by approximately \$1,670,500.
- The Fiduciary Fund:
  - Sales tax receivable and due from other funds were understated by approximately \$631,700.

### Recommendation:

We recommend that management strengthen its review and reconciliation procedures over interfund balances and yearend sales tax receivables across all applicable funds to ensure all amounts are accurately supported, properly classified, and timely recorded as part of the year-end closing process.

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

### **FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS**

None reported.



2001 Howard Road, Suite 201 Madera, California 93637

559.675.0721 www.maderactc.org

# MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Finding Number	Planned Corrective Action	Anticipated Completion Date	Responsible Contact Person
2024-001	Add Closeout Procedure to Verify Receivables and Payables Balances	9-30-25	Troy McNeil, Deputy Director, Fiscal Superviso

Patricia Taylor \
Executive Director

Troy McNeil

Deputy Director/Fiscal Supervisor



### **STAFF REPORT**

# Citizens' Oversight Committee Meeting of September 24, 2025

AGENDA ITEM: 7-A

PREPARED BY: Troy McNeil, Deputy Director/Fiscal Supervisor

### **SUBJECT:**

Measure T Local Agency Project Updates – City of Chowchilla, City of Madera, County of Madera

Enclosure: No

Action: Information and Discussion Only

### **SUMMARY:**

The City of Chowchilla, City of Madera, and County of Madera will provide updates on Measure T funded projects.



### **STAFF REPORT**

# Citizens' Oversight Committee Meeting of September 24, 2025

**AGENDA ITEM:** 8-A

PREPARED BY: Troy McNeil, Deputy Director/Fiscal Supervisor

**SUBJECT:** 

Measure T Regional Project Updates

Enclosure: No

**Action:** Information and Discussion Only

**SUMMARY:** 

MCTC staff will provide an update on Measure T funded regional projects.



### **STAFF REPORT**

# Citizens' Oversight Committee Meeting of September 24, 2025

**AGENDA ITEM:** 9-A

PREPARED BY: Troy McNeil, Deputy Director/Fiscal Supervisor

**SUBJECT:** 

FY 2024 Annual Report to the Public

Enclosure: Yes

Action: Approve Annual Report to the Public

### **SUMMARY:**

The Citizens' Oversight Committee annually reviews how sales tax receipts are being spent and publicizes the results in a formal annual report.

To the Residents of Madera County

The Measure T Citizens' Oversight Committee is pleased to announce the findings of the review of fiscal year 2024 Measure T revenues and expenditures. In the seventeenth year of the Measure T program, **revenues totaled over \$16.16 million**. Construction and engineering work continued on many regional and local projects. The local agencies spent over **\$10.51 million on local projects** including road rehabilitation, maintenance, transit, and pedestrian/bicycle facility projects. Expenditures on **regional projects totaled \$4.3 million** on projects and **\$1.31 million for debt service payments**, including paying off the Series 2010 bonds.

**The City of Madera** continued to spend funds to install sidewalks and for other air quality projects. Funds continued to be spent on the Almond/Pine Street Traffic Study as well as to install the D Street/South Street Traffic Signal. **The City of Chowchilla** continued work on the Chowchilla Boulevard Rehab project as well as other road maintenance projects. **The County of Madera** continued work on various maintenance and road repair projects throughout the county. Construction work was completed on the Road 200 Finegold Creek Bridge project.

The Measure T financial statements for the fiscal year 2024 were audited by independent auditing firms with no significant deficiencies identified. The audited financial statements can be viewed at the <u>Madera County Transportation Authority website</u>.

The Committee has reviewed the audited Measure T Financial Statements and reports of the independent auditors from July 2023 to June 2024 and received testimony from the auditors at a Committee meeting. The Committee concurs that Measure T expenditures are in accordance with the Measure T program.

Measure T continues to serve as a crucial source of local infrastructure investment including leveraging state and federal funds for the Madera County region. The Committee looks forward to continue working with the community to ensure the ongoing success of the Measure T Program.

### **Measure T Citizens' Oversight Committee**

District 1 Janice Gomes, Vice Chair

**District 2 Wayne Chapman** 

**District 3 Joe Moreno** 

**District 4 Santos Garcia** 

**District 5 Russell Shaw** 

Member At Large Terry Flanagan, Chair

**Member At Large April Molina**